ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 15, 2017
8:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Tom Begi ch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents
Karen Perdue - Fairbanks

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmmi ssion
Maur een van Wagner - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

KAREN PERDUE, Appoi ntee

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

MAUREEN VAN WAGNER, Appoi ntee
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Comm ssion (PTPC)

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2017



Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 00: 56 AM

CHAIR SHELLEY HUGHES <called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Begich, G essel, Stevens, and Chair Hughes.
Senator Coghill arrived shortly thereafter

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

8:01:32 AM
CHAI R HUGHES announced that the only order of business would be
confirmation hearings.

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

CHAI R HUGHES i ntroduced Ms. Perdue.

8:02: 02 AM

KAREN PERDUE, Appointee, University of Al aska Board of Regents
shared her professional and personal background. She said she is
a lifelong Alaskan, lived in Juneau for 20 years while serving
in state governnment, and has traveled all over Al aska. She
retired in 2014 and has been vol unteering since then.

She related qualifications related to her appointnent to the
Board of Regents. She worked in Senator Ted Stevens' office as a
press secretary and policy aide and then served under four
governors and as conm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and
Social Services for eight years. She said oil was $9 per barre

when she served under Governor Know es and she |earned how to
noti vate people even during hard tines.

She then served as the Associate Vice President for Health
Prograns at the University of Alaska-Fairbanks. During that
time, she developed innovative acadenmc prograns wth the
faculty and worked wth |eadership on every canpus on a
statewi de academ c health plan. She |earned the inportance of
the university to the state's econony and to enployers and that
the university nust neet students' needs to attract and retain
them She said higher education is very conpetitive and students
have options for it. They are very skilled consuners wth

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2017



legitimate expectations for ease of wuse of the system for
course sequencing, and for high quality.

M5. PERDUE related that she has worked in large institutiona
systems with a lot of mssions and has served on several boards,
such as the Denali Commi ssi on, Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation, and as director of the State Hospital and Nursing
Home Board where she learned the difference between nanagenent
and governance. For 10 years she represented the U S. on the
I nternational Arctic Council Forum in Human Di nmension.

8: 07: 07 AM

M5. PERDUE stated that the Board of Regents is one of the few
boards that is listed in the state constitution. It is intended
to be a powerful oversight to a one-state wuniversity. |Its
mssion is to guide the policy of the university and hire the
president. The board and the president work together to
adm nister a systemthat is now conprised of 30,000 students and
$850 million.

She noted that the wuniversity is facing severe financial
pressures and declining enrollnent. The regents and the
president will be making tough decisions over the next severa
years. She stated the need to continue to send a signal to
students that the wuniversity wll provide a quality academc
experience and conduct world-class research, even in tinmes of
financial difficulty.

She related the reasons she wants to serve on the University of
Al aska Board of Regents. She said the University of Alaska is
going to be celebrating its 100th year and the founders would be
delighted with the system that has been built. She wants to
participate in guiding the university in this trying tinme so
that it is around for at |east another 100 years, if not nore

She noted her three children will have graduated from the UA
system and her ol dest grandson has started at UAF

8:09: 12 AM
SENATOR STEVENS t hanked Ms. Perdue for her years of service. He
asked how the regents will address the financial situation.

M5. PERDUE said the Board's job is to set values and guidelines
for the president and the chancellors in looking at budget
reductions and to listen to the president's ideas and vote on
them The Board's job is not to cone up with the ideas, but to
set the tineline and to listen to the public and stakehol ders on

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2017



the inpacts of financial decisions. She shared her experience at
her first Board neeting.

8:11: 04 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked what is causing declining enrollnent.

M5. PERDUE said she would |like to delve into that problem by
| ooki ng at several issues, such as fewer high school graduates,
outward mgration of students, and flat job grow h.

8:12:17 AM
SENATOR COCGHI LL spoke of the consolidation and alignnent of
uni versity canpuses.

MS. PERDUE asked for clarification.

SENATOR COGHILL asked specifically about alignnent of the
Nur si ng Program certifications.

8:13: 24 AM

M5. PERDUE sunmarized the organization of the Nursing Prograns
noting that one of the problens students have has is that the
canpuses do not have a common calendar. She understood that
course transfers have inproved. Al so, she said the three faculty
have aligned general education requirenents.

SENATOR COGHI LL said University President Johnsen is |ooking for
endownent noney and to resolve the Land Grant issue for sources
of increased revenues. He asked about outreach to econonic
comunities for the benefit of the university.

8:15: 29 AM

M5. PERDUE thought the tax credit did help certain businesses
participate 1in supporting the wuniversity and it 1is being
reexam ned. She related that when she worked in the health
field, the industry was willing to contribute to the programin
the form of block grants, as long as results were reported. She
said that process could continue because graduates are their
future enpl oyees.

8:16:28 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL spoke of the need to conpete wth other
universities and to attract students. He noted a goal to work
better between K-12 and the university. The struggle is that the
university system is partly a junior college and partly an
accredited university. He asked if she has been |ooking at the
president's initiative to work with the K-12 system

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2017



M5. PERDUE responded that she has read sone materials and
received a briefing from UAA about the M ddle Coll ege.

8:18: 02 AM

CHAI R HUGHES t hought there was m salignnent between K-12 and the
university due to the high level of renediation needed for
freshmen students.

8:18:42 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL spoke of the Mddle College and wondered if
college credits earned in high school are at a |ower standard
She wanted to verify the authenticity of high school-earned
college credits. She also said there is still a problem with
transfer of credits.

She brought wup the topic of lack of faculty for President
Johnsen.

M5. PERDUE said the Board needs to hear unified input from all
st akehol ders. The president has increased on-canmpus neetings
|ately. She stressed that it is a hard time and it is hard to
make cuts. The president has created the Strategic Pathways
structure which is getting better according to the faculty.

8:21:29 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that the state was at $9 per barre
oil last year. She voiced concern that the state subsidizes

university students at $20,000 per student. The next state
subsidi zes at about $9 per student. She noted that alumi
organi zations do not support the wuniversity's sports prograns
like other <colleges do. She asked where M. Perdue saw
opportunity there.

8:22:47 AM
M5. PERDUE said she does not have enough information yet on that
i ssue.

CHAIR HUGHES asked for clarification of the $9 anount. She
t hought perhaps Senator G essel neant $9, 000.

SENATOR G ESSEL agr eed.
8:.23:41 AM
SENATOR BEG CH noted his relationship with Ms. Perdue when she

hired himas the Cormmunity Justice Coordinator in the Departnment
of Health and Social Services. He asked for her vision of

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2017



teacher training and whether there is a role for the Board of
Regents in hel ping define teacher education for this century and
beyond.

8:24:30 AM
M5. PERDUE said the process of reporting to the Board through
the Academic Student Affairs Conmmttee will help address how

academ c prograns address rural teachers and teacher retention

The university has al so adopted a teacher nentor program for new
teachers. The Board's role is to challenge the Schools of
Education to address the issues that the data shows are
pr obl ens.

8:25:46 AM
SENATOR BEG CH noted Ms. Perdue nentioned that the constitution
requires one university in Al aska. He asked what that neans to
t he state.

M5. PERDUE opined that the university was nmeant to be a portion
of the state's econony and to serve the people across the state.
Many of the jobs the university educates for are in both snal
and large communities. Health care jobs and teaching are
exanples. She stressed the need to look at students as "place
commtted" as opposed to "place bound.” The university needs to
| ook at distance delivery and other nethods of fulfilling that
responsi bility.

SENATOR BEA CH agreed that it is a high-level goal and one he
has been looking for. He spoke of the difficulty of making
budget cuts and President Johnsen's funding reconmendations, yet
the Senate is instead |ooking at another $16 mllion in cuts on
top of the CGovernor's proposed budget. He asked how the state
shoul d neet the vision of a place-committed university, in light
of those budget cuts, and what the Board is | ooking to do.

M5. PERDUE replied that she has heard that Strategic Pathways is
an effective tool to |look at business processes in trying to
ensure efficiency and custoner satisfaction. She said she did
not have an answer that addressed academ c prograns and
athletics. She suggested a need to challenge the chancellors and
faculty with the awareness of the current financial environnent.

8:29:35 AM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if she has taken a distance education
cl ass.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2017



M5. PERDUE said she has taught a 3-hour distance education
graduat e- | evel cl ass. She said sone students are very
confortable with that type of learning, others are not, and it
is challenging to the instructor, but wth training, very
rewar di ng.

8:30: 26 AM

CHAI R HUGHES conmmented that Mat-Su w shed to have representation
on the Board. She described how their canpus has changed to
become a thriving university. She asked Ms. Perdue to keep that
area in mnd, noting there is great potential there.

MS. PERDUE t hanked the committee.

8:32: 50 AM

CHAI R HUGHES thanked Ms. Perdue and introduced Ms. van WAgner.
She requested a review of what the Professional Teaching
Practi ces Conmi ssion does.

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Commi ssi on

MAUREEN VAN WAGNER, Appointee, Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion (PTPC), shared her professional background. She said
she is currently a special education teacher in Anchorage and
has been an educator for 21 years. She said she has served as
t he teacher representative on PTPC for the |ast three years.

She related that PTPC is a process that deals with education
policy and reviews teacher sanctions and nmkes decisions. They
strengt hened the language in the Code of Ethics for teachers in
order to highlight the high expectations placed on teachers. She
is happy to spend another three years on the PTPC and share her
hi stori cal know edge.

8:35:41 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Ms. van Wagner for her service. He said
there is a struggle to keep teachers in Al aska. He asked how the
state could do a better job retaining teachers.

M5. VAN WAGNER shared her experience in a teacher training
program and the inportance of knowing clearly what she was
getting into as a teacher. She is currently a nmentor to new
teachers and works with teachers who are on inprovenent plans
In that role, she stresses the inportance of the code of ethics
and an understandi ng of what is expected of teachers.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2017



SENATOR COGHI LL noted the inportance of classroom nanagenent and
descri bed the challenging classroom environnment. He appreciated
Ms. van Wagner's willingness to work with teachers.

8:38: 39 AM

SENATOR BEAQ CH thanked Ms. van Wagner for serving again. He
spoke of a reconmendation from the Senate Finance Subconmittee
on Education that the 2016 Performance Review of the Departnent
of Education and Early Developnent finding related to objective
#9 be pursued. That recomrendation was to consolidate the work
of PTPC into the Ofice of Teacher Certification for cost
reducti on purposes and to elimnate duplication of processes. He
asked if that reconmendati on makes sense.

8:40: 22 AM

M5. VAN WAGNER said PTPC has discussed this recomendati on. She
opined that it would not be a good idea because the two serve
opposite roles. The Ofice of Teacher Certification enables
teachers to teach; PTPC revokes certifications. She described
the makeup of the Board and their ability to mke good
decisions. The Ofice of Teacher Certification already has a
difficult time getting certifications out in a tinmely manner.
PTPC serves the teaching comunity best as it currently
functi ons.

8:41:55 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL thanked her for serving. She inquired how many
suspensi ons or revocations have taken place.

M5. VAN WAGNER suggested she go the PTPC website for that data.
She guessed there were 4 to 5 cases per year; not nmany
revocati ons.

8:43:19 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL asked how the actions of PTPC affect teacher
retention. She asked if they follow up on the results of
sancti ons.

M5. VAN WAGNER said she does not have that information and
suggested Senator G essel ask the director, Janes Seitz. She did
not think their actions would affect teacher retention. Only a
smal | fraction of teachers have sanctions.

SENATOR G ESSEL clarified that she neant a specific educator who
receives a disciplinary action

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2017



M5. VAN WAGNER said sanctions are warnings. It is up to
districts to deci de what happens after that.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if tenured teachers can be fired.

M5. VAN WAGNER said it depends on each district. She has seen
teachers fired, tenured or not. Anyone can be recomended to
PTPC. Most of those teachers are not tenured teachers and need
support and nentoring.

8:47: 25 AM

CHAI R HUGHES fol |l owed up on Senator Begich's question of merging
adm nistrative functions of PTPC and the Ofice of Teacher
Certification.

M5. VAN WAGNER asked for clarification.

CHAIR HUGHES said she was thinking of streamining of the
adm ni stration.

M5. VAN WAGNER said PTPC has been streamined already; the
director no |l onger has a secretary.

8:49: 39 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL, in accordance wth AS 39.05.080, noved that the
appoi ntment of Maureen van Wagner to the Professional Teaching
Practices Commission, and Karen Perdue to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents, be forwarded to a joint session for
consideration. This does not reflect an intent of any nenbers to
vote for or against the confirmation of these individuals during
any further sessions.

8:50: 23 AM
CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinmony and, seeing none, closed
public testinony.

She said the appointments of M. Wagner and Ms. Perdue wll be
forwarded to the joint session.

8:50: 52 AM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Hughes adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmttee
at 8:50 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- March 15, 2017



